WisquisceNTCM 125th Anniversary 1884-2009



United Methodist Churce White, South Dakota

Celebrating

SQUICENT 125th Anniversary 1884-2009



United Methodist Church White, South Dakota

June 28,2009

In Remembrance and Rededication

This book and 125th Anniversary Celebration are dedicated to those who long ago had the vision to begin a Methodist Congregation in White, to those who have continued the congregation and those who now hold the future of this congregation in their hands.

We reaffirm our faith in God.



The Quasquicentennial Committee:

Pastor Matt Richards
Alvin Schmidt, Council Chairman
Geraldine Schmidt, Lay Leader
Viola Robbins, Co-Chair
Lois Simmons, Co-Chair
Robert Schulz
Harold Haber
Laura Wilts
Barbara Schulz

A. Willford, 1895; F.A. Burdick, 1895-1896; Lachlan MacLean, 1896-1897; Samuel J. Watson, 1897-1899, J.B. Dibble, 1899-1900.

The first marriage performed by a Methodist minister, the Rev. M. Hooker, was that of John H. Simmons and Jane Tyler on December 7, 1884. The first marriage recorded in the church records was that of Benjamin F. Doughty and Frances Dickason on December 6, 1890. The first marriage to be recorded as having taken place in the church was that of Constance McKercher and George Schutjer on June 19, 1923.

Early baptisms were recorded as infant and adult. On July 23, 1893, S.A. French baptized eleven people in the "Creek near White." Four people were baptized at Oak Lake in 1920.

The first parsonage was built in 1891 and the first occupants were Rev. H.M. Springer and family.

M.L. Paler and Henry and John Hendricks purchased the first church organ, probably in the early 1890's for \$78.00. In 1950, an organ was purchased with Memorial Fund begun by Mr. and Mrs. John Shultz in Memory of their sons, Matthew and Floyd, casualties of war, and with more gifts from others.

In 1973, Donald Schultz presented the church with chimes for the organ, which added much to our worship. The organ has served us well for fifty-nine years, and has recently been repaired. An "Organ Fund" has been established, and over the years many have given to this fund as Gifts and Memorials.

Rev. L. MacLeans' daughter, Mrs. A.H. Gazeley, and his granddaughter, Mrs. Norm (Kathryn) Schouweiler, both served as pianist and organist for many years. Over the years, many with musical talent have been organists and pianists, including wives of ministers, namely, Mrs. Carol Heckman and Mrs. Mildred Hessel. In 1960, Darlene Simmons Schulz began as organist. Among those who have assisted her over the years are Mabel Jones, Helen Harjes, Cheryl Simmons Beste, Linda Simmons Patrick, Dixie Haber Miller, Janice Simmons, Nancy Simmons Smith, Kaye Patrick, Geraldine Schmidt, Kathy Tyler and more recently, Wilma Ohlsen and Janet Basmajian.



Darlene Schulz, Organist

At the organ is our good and faithful organist. Her love of music is expressed every Sunday. She graciously arranges for singing groups to sing, and spends many hours in practice. This is our opportunity to express to her and her assistants our thanks and appreciation.

Following the aforementioned ministers were Amos Emmett, 1900-01; C.D. MacLean, 1901-02; T. Sanderson, 1902-05; Paul Gardner, 1905-09; W.E. Hartung, 1909-12; H.C. Ozanne, 1912-14, M.E. Nicherson, 1914-16, and F.J. Hoffman, 1916-17.

In 1916, a German Methodist Church, built in 1886, (which is now the First Baptist Church) united with the Methodist Church under the leadership of Rev. F.J. Hoffman.

Serving the parish following Rev. Hoffman were C.B. Dennison, 1917-19; C.C. Hanson, 1919-1922; J.B. Dibble, 1922-1924; H.S. Blair, 1924-1926; K.P. Kilbourn, 1926-1928; J.S. Palmer, 1928-1930; and Roy E. Graves, 1930-1935. During this time, Elkton and Aurora were added, making this a three-point charge. During the ministry of Rev. G.A. Doolittle, 1935-1939, major improvements were made, and in November of 1937, a rededication of the church was held.

Rev. H.H. Arms was the minister from 1939 until poor health caused him to retire in 1947. Rev. Frank Traver served the church from 1947-1954, during which time more major remodeling was done to both the

church and the parsonage. A rededication service was held September 5, 1948. Rev. Traver constructed the altar that is still used today.

In 1948, following the union of Methodism, the church was renamed the First Methodist Church. The church became a Corporation in May of 1960. With the merging of the Methodist Church and the Evangelical United Brethren Church in 1968, it became known as the United Methodist Church. The Corporation was amended in 1978 to show the name change.

Elkton and Aurora were declared a new charge in 1949, and White was again a "station charge" until 1951, when the Sterling church became a part of this Charge.

In the early 1950's, membership totaled 237, and Sunday School had an enrollment of 147.

Rev. Cecil Miller served 1954-55; Clair Mitchell, 1955-57; and Harry Ernst, 1957-62.

The present parsonage was purchased in 1960 for one dollar and other considerations from Bessie Helen Sander and Ethel I. Milfs to be used as the place of residence for ministers of the Methodist Church who are appointed to serve, subject to the Discipline if the General Conference and Annual Conference. After considerable renovation and redecorating, Rev. and Mrs. Ernst first occupied the parsonage. In 1975, shingles and carpet were installed. In 1992, the parsonage was painted, and new floor coverings were installed. It was reshingled in September of 1994. In 2007, permanent siding was installed, a large amount being paid by an anonymous donor. New windows were installed on the North porch, donated and installed by Mike and Joyce Stegeman. Upkeep of the parsonage is a continuous effort, and updates are made as needed.

Rev. Wayne Rager served 1962-63; Robert Heckman, 1963-65; Don Smith, 1965-69. Edwin Hessel, 1969-72; James Torbert as a supply Pastor from January to June 1973; Don Lagge, 1973-77; Tom Martin, 1977-80, Roger Spahr, 1980-83; and Penny Ritter, 1983-1988.

This again became a three-point Charge while Rev. Lagge was here, when Aurora was added to the White-Sterling Charge. While Rev. Lagge was here, he preached a worship service from the roof of the church. He also dressed as a circuit rider and rode a horse from White to Aurora and to Sterling.

The congregation observed the 80th Anniversary in 1966, its 90th in 1975, and its Centennial in 1984.

In the 1970's, our church was heir to the Frank James and Florence W. Lucas estate.

In 1979, while Tom Martin was our Pastor, a building committee was established to study the feasibility of remodeling or building a new structure. The congregation had outgrown the old church building, and it was in need of much repair. On November 21, 1980, by vote of the congregation, building a new structure was approved.

On September 19, 1982, groundbreaking ceremonies were held at a new location, 404 East Main, with construction beginning shortly thereafter. Materials were purchased from Masden Lumber in White. Wright and Rue were the carpenters and various contractors were hired for the various phases of construction. Many members donated their time finishing woodwork, painting, installing pews, and doing whatever they could to help.

Three fund drives were conducted and with a generous grant from the McKnight Foundation, the church was completed and dedicated June 5, 1983, paid in full at a total of \$16,000.00

The move to the new church was made in April of 1983. District Superintendent Ken Voas was principal speaker at the Consecration-Dedication service held June 7, 1983. An open house was held June 21 to view our new place of worship.

The first funeral held in our new church was that of Marvin Simmons. The first wedding was that of Paul Schmidt and Jane Thomas.

The old building, with its many memories, was sold to the Church of Christ, and later to the White Historical Society. It is now a museum, and the bell remains in the belfry due to the expense of moving it.

For a period of time beginning in 1985, worship services were recorded and taken to shut-ins. This ministry has continued to be an essential part of ministering to those in need throughout the years.

In 1984, we entered a float in the White City Centennial Parade. We've entered floats in Pioneer Day parades since then, winning awards such as "Most Patriotic," "Best Music," "Best Costume." In 2000, the float went to Astoria and Hendricks to be in parades there. Plans are to have a float in 2009 in the parade for the 125th Anniversary of White.

In 1981, to raise funds for the new church building, harvest dinners were served and bazaars were held at McKnight Hall. For two years, funds raised at bazaars went to the UMW. In 1984 and 1985, this ceased. In 1986, in need of funds for the General Fund, the "White Christmas Faire" was held for the first time, and has been held every year since. The dedicated members who give generously of their time and talents and our loyal customers have made this event successful for twenty-five years.

After Rev. Spahr left in 1983, our first female minister came to us. Penny Jane Ritter stayed until 1988, and was followed by Terryl Huyck, 1988-92; Jo Watkins, 1992-98; Dave Westlake, 1998-2001; Bonnie Peterson, a student at Seminary in Sioux Falls, 2001-07. The husband of Jo Watkins, Carl, was the Minister at Campus Ministries at the University in Brookings. The wife of Dave Westlake, Carolyn, was Pastor for the Methodist church in Hendricks, Minnesota.

At the time of our Centennial in 1984, our membership was 190. We had an active Sunday School, and d fully organized United Methodist Women's group. We had an active youth group, and two Circles. We had a choir nine months of the year. A Brotherhood started in 1953 was active. The men farmed at three different locations East and West of White until the 1970's, with proceeds helping the church needs. The men also served a Mother-Daughter Banquet.

Pastors who have been ordained while serving here are Frank Traver, Clair Mitchell, Cecil Miller, Don Lagge, and Roger Spahr. Those who have gone from this church to enter the ministry were Harris Halstead, Dennis Tyler, Robert Simmons, Wallace Kurtz and Paul Orcutt.

In 1987, three young people, Boyd Schulz, Kevin Haber and Tammy Tyler, chaperoned by Pastor Penny Ritter, made a trip to Washington D.C. and New York City. Each of the youth was given one hundred dollars out of the General Fund, and the same from the UMW.

The members of Circles went once a month to the White Care Center for devotions and served lunch, but that was discontinued after twenty years.

In the early 1990's, confirmation students joined the students at the Methodist church in Brookings for instruction. Also in the early 1990's, we served turkey dinners in the spring to raise funds. The men served soup suppers.

In 1993, the Worship Committee sponsored the first "Hymn Sing and Create-a-Sundae." This has continued every year since. Everyone is welcome to join us in singing the old time hymns. Ice cream and toppings are served. At this event, the organists and pianists are recognized for their dedication and talent by presenting them with a bouquet. Another tradition began that year, as well.

For All Saints Sunday, members were asked, if they wished to do so, to bring a flower in memory of a loved on to make the Altar Bouquet. The name of the loved one is listed and remembered in prayer. This is the Sunday that gifts and memorials given during the present year are dedicated.

In 1993, Victoria Robbins took the Lay Speaker basic course and was the local church Lay Speaker. After taking the advanced course, she was Certified Lay Speaker 1996-1999. Since 2000, she is the local church Lay Speaker. In 2004, Robert Oda moved to the area from Minnesota and is Certified Lay Speaker. Before these Lay Speakers, Lay Leaders or visiting Pastors did worship services in the absence of the Pastor.

Through the years, several members have made banners for the sanctuary and fellowship hall, some seasonal for the Christian year, and some covering other topics.

The Membership Committee presents a gift to all baptized infants, confirmands and new members joining the church. They also honor graduates on Graduation Sunday.

In 1994, Michael O'Keefe, Ex Vice President of the McKnight Foundation, visited and was pleased with our building and the practical use of the grant we received from the Foundation.

The United Methodist Women held the first Pie Social, later changing the name to Bar-B-Que and Pie Social, which continues today, as their mission project.

In 1994, North Dakota and South Dakota merged into what is now called the Dakota's Conference. Beginning in 1993, people were nominated to be recognized by the Annual Conference. Those honored thus far are: Alvin Schultz, 1993; Viola Robbins, 1994; Donald Schultz, 1995; Darlene Schulz, 1996; Merlin Haber, 1997; Lois Simmons, 1998; Florence Kurtz, 1999; Tyson Norman, 2000; Christine Woodard, 2001.

In 1995, JoAnne Robins Murphy from the Aurora church, Donald Schultz, Audrey Lee, Merlin and Margaret Haber and Viola Robbins of the White church made a banner for the Inauguration of President Ewing at the Dakota Wesleyan University in Mitchell, held April 20, 1995. Donald Schultz took the banner and represented us at this event. President Ewing was formerly at the State University in Brookings.

In 1995, 1996 and 1997, we did a "Hanging of the Greens" the first Sunday of Advent, followed with a brunch or supper. This was dropped due to lack of attendance.

In 1996 and 1999, during Lent, the portrayal of the "Last Supper" was done, with the men from Aurora, Sterling and White doing the drama.

In 1996, in observance of Heritage Sunday, the Worship Committee began honoring 45 year or longer members. The first few years, we had long time members take part in worship by reminiscing about the days they were in Sunday School. When there wasn't much more to

be said on that subject, we honored them with a corsage and names listed in the bulletin. This was later taken over by the Membership and Evangelism Committee, and continues today.

In 1998, pictures were taken for the Church Directory of White. Plans are to do this in the fall of 2009, along with Aurora and Sterling.

In 1998, the Parking Lot Fund was established in Memory of Russell Simmons, and many have given Memorials and gifts. This continues today, so we can blacktop or pave the parking lot.

In 1999, we observed the International Year for Older Persons with a special worship resolution signed, framed and hung. Also in 1999, to observe the ending of the 20th century, on the last Sunday of each month, the Worship Committee had "Centennial Echoes" at the beginning of worship. Members of the congregation read events that happened each decade in the world and nation, our state, our town, and our church. The young people had one Sunday to give their visions and hopes for the future.

During Pastor Westlake's ministry, he prepared dinner for the congregation as a reward for 75 people being in worship for a month of Sundays. Confirmation was again held in White for the three churches. We received generous gifts from the Florence Kurtz Estate. Copyright license was obtained for all three churches.

During the late 1990's, we sponsored radio ads for local ballgames. In 2000, we joined St. Paul Catholic Church and Pioneer Lutheran for Ecumenical Thanksgiving service held at McKnight Hall. A rock band played in church, with sixty young people in attendance. A harassment policy was made as requested by Conference, covering teachers, students and other personnel. A copy was sent to Aurora and Sterling churches.

Members began serving Harvest Dinner at the United Methodist Church in Brookings. This continues today, with the furnishing of food.

In 2002, we held a special worship service in remembrance of September 11, 2001.

Mission Committee prepares kits for Ingathering, held each year in Mitchell. One Sunday is designated as Blanket Sunday. Sunday School, UMW, or anyone wishing to fills Christmas shoeboxes. The boxes got to children on Indian Reservations.

In 2003, a coordinator for social events (except funerals) was appointed. This appointment was given to Marlys Haber.

Sunday School sells lunches at auction sales for funds for Camp Scholarships. In 2006, they began serving turkey dinners on Mother's Day to raise funds. In 2005, the Sunday School received a large amount of surplus Sunday School materials from the Methodist Church in Brookings.

In the year 2003, Darlene Schulz was instrumental in beginning the Christmas Tea, held the first Saturday in December, and with helpers, continues each year. A different theme is used each year to make each Christmas Tea original.

In 2005, Parish potluck suppers began once a month, along with choir practice. The choir sang the next Sunday in the church where the potluck was held, rotating monthly. We also began collecting Hy-Vee receipts in 2005. For each \$150,000 or receipts collected, we receive \$1000. We are currently in our third collection.

Our mission statement is "Working for the Kingdom of God." Vision is "We will serve God's people in the whole community."

Redistricting was done in 2005 by the conference, and affected us by changing the name of our district from Southeast to Glacial Lakes District.

In 2006, Bob and Collette Oda, with the help of others, began preparing and serving International Dinners. The proceeds are used to help pay for those who go to Spirit Lake in North Dakota to renovate a campsite purchased by the conference. Some of the funds used for the trip are from the UMW Bar-B-Que and Pie Social. Those who went in 2006 were Bob and Collette Oda, Pastor Bonnie Peterson of White, and Gloria Pike of Aurora. Bob and Collette made a second trip in 2007.

Harold and Marlys Haber refinished the communion set in 2006.

Pastor Matt Richards came to White in July 2007 from Garrett-Evangelical Theological Seminary in Evanston, Illinois. Where he also served as the Student Associate Pastor at St. Thomas UMC in Glen Ellyn, Illinois. In addition to the three churches, Pastor Matt also serves the United Faith Campus Ministries at South Dakota State University in Brookings. This is a Ministry fully funded by the Dakotas Conference of the United Methodist Church, with First United Methodist Church of Brookings supplying some programming funds.



Pastor Matt Richards

Pastor Matt plays the guitar and has a beautiful singing voice. He often favors us with a song during worship that he has written, or from a selection of other songs.

Sidewalk Sunday School came to White from North Dakota in 2007 and again in 2008.

Pastor Matt began fun nights either showing a movie or playing board games. One of the other changes made in 2007 were that the Church Newsletter for the Parish was discontinued, however, Pastor Matt would like for the churches to pick up the ball again. Bob Oda led a Discipleship study. The remaining Circle, which met in the afternoon, disbanded due to poor attendance, and lack of interest. Pastor Matt, the Lay Leader, a Pianist, and others go to the White Care Center the first Wednesday of the month for devotions and music.

To observe Veteran's Day, we honored veterans of the congregation living and those who gave the supreme sacrifice while serving our country. A decorated cake was served in their honor at coffee fellowship. The names were listed in the bulletin, and a lapel ribbon with the time they served was given to them to wear. We did this again in 2008. Members from our congregation who gave the supreme sacrifice while in the service of our country are Harold Dale Higgins, World War I; Wayne Kinsey, Matthew Schultz, Floyd Walker and Cecil Welch, World War II, Floyd Schultz, Korean War, and Paul Clark, Peace Time.

Members of the congregation were invited to join the Worship Committee to decorate the sanctuary for Christmas. This was followed by a light lunch, and was repeated in 2008. A Christmas Eve Candle Light service for the parish was held in White with a good attendance of 70 people.

Members of the church help Pastor Matt serve communion. The Sunday School led the worship service on Camp Sunday.

One of our young people, Austin Schmidt, joined a group going to Mexico on a Mission trip to help families there. One hundred dollars was given to him from the General Fund.

Pastor Matt and Bob Oda made a Mission Trip to the Tree of Life, Rosebud Reservation. Members from St. Thomas UMC in Glen Ellyn, IL joined these two missionaries in service to a forgotten people.

On April 13, 2008, Rededication Service was held observing 25 years of worship in our new church. Since then, Pastor Matt was commissioned as a Provisional Elder at the Annual Conference held in Fargo, ND.

Air conditioners were installed in the church, and were purchased with Memorial Funds.

The young people attended the "Life Light" concert in Sioux Falls.

A new outside kitchen door with an oval window was given as a gift from Robert and Wilma Ohlsen.

Missions served 170 at the Harvest Table in Brookings in September.

The PPR committee purchased a Sharp copier.

In honor of the 50th wedding anniversary of Harold and Marlys Haber, their family presented the church with a "Lord's Blessings" banner.

The amount of kits taken to the Ingathering totaled \$1596.00. Thirty-one Christmas shoeboxes were also filled and taken to the Ingathering.

A Parish wide Thanksgiving Eve service was held in White. Each church held their own Christmas Eve service. We ended up having to cancel worship on two Sundays in December due to inclement weather.

Pastor Matt appointed the Membership and Evangelism Committee, as well as the History and Records Committee to plan this 125th Anniversary Observance, held on June 28, 2009.

Tentative plans for 2009 are to paint the fellowship hall sometime in the spring or summer. Some of the other things that we have already done this year are the International Dinner that was held on March 15, 2009. Pastor Matt led a Bible study during Lent.

We rotate the Ash Wednesday, Holy Thursday and Good Friday services with Sterling and Aurora. Ash Wednesday service was held at Sterling. Holy Thursday service was held at White with communion and the washing of hands. The Good Friday service was held in Aurora. For the first time, we held a prayer vigil on Holy Saturday at White. Everyone is welcome to this event in the future.

Pastor Matt attended a Youth Ministry meeting in North Dakota. He also went to Washington D.C. for the Sojourners Conference.

Heritage Sunday was observed, and those that have been members for forty-five years or more were honored.

We are planning on ministry at Spirit Lake, North Dakota. We are also planning to have a float in the Pioneer Day Parade, observing the 125th Anniversary of White.

At this, our 125th Anniversary, June 28, 2009, we have 99 members. Our oldest member by age is Viola Hartley. Our youngest who attend worship with their parents are Tyrus Schulz at ten months, and Dailynn Kay Schomp at three months. We have five members who have been members for over sixty years. They are Merlin Haber, Harold Haber, Margaret Haber, Hazel Bentaas and Alvin Schultz.

There are twelve Sunday School students and the following traditions are carried on: presentation of a Bible to third grade students, procession of palms on Palm Sunday, Lenten Fair, Camp Sunday, serve dinner on Mother's Day for Camp Scholarships, do a Christmas program, Vacation Bible School and some of them attend camp.

We have an active UMW. The members do fellowship coffee each Sunday. When requested to do so, they, along with all ladies of the congregation, serve lunch or dinner for funerals, birthdays and receptions. The ladies host World Day of Prayer and May Friendship on rotation with other churches in the area. Other projects of the members are raising funds for Missions and doing the worship service on UMW Sunday. The UMM has not been active since the early 1990's. We do not presently have an active UMYF due to a lack of youth in that age group.

We observe all six Special Sundays approved by the General Conference with Special Offering. We also observe Laity Sunday, with the Lay Leader doing worship and the congregation participating.

We do not have a choir to sing every Sunday, but groups do music on Special Sundays of the Christian year.

We continue to rotate time of worship with Sterling and Aurora.

Viola Robbins of the History and Records Committee compiled this book. Information was taken from previous written history and records. Mary Norman did lettering for the cover of this book. Nichole Schulz did pictures. Lois Simmons did the invitations.

The committee wishes to thank all those who took part in the program and helped in any way to make this observance a joyful, meaningful experience.

Pastoral Remarks:

Rev. Matthew G. Richards

As I have read through this booklet and have been impressed with all that the church has done through it's many years, I can't help but think about all the hours of service and sacrifice that you, the faithful, have put in. From the early pioneer days to the dirty thirties, on through the war years and into the 8o's, 90's and now the new millennium, the United Methodists in White have remained unfailing and stalwart in their mission of making disciples of Jesus Christ.

Despite times of deep heartache and members coming and going you have continued on and now look at where you are. God has special plans for you in White. Your work here is not done. I am honored and excited to serve you as Pastor as we, together with the help of God, map out what our mission in White is and will be in the coming years.

The Quasquiscentennial Celebration, 125 years in ministry! What an accomplishment. Let us count our blessings and take to heart the good and the bad, together as these events have shaped us and provided us with experience and wisdom in ministry!

We have much to do in White on the frontlines of ministry. We have a fine facility, which has open doors to those in need. We have an entire generation of young people who are looking for answers, seeking solutions. Let us greet these challenges with open hearts, open minds and open doors!

White United Methodist Church 2009 **Church Council**

UMW President

Members at Large

Chair	Alvin Schmidt
Vice Chair	Bob Oda
PPR Rep	Brian Schmidt
Finance Chair	Lois Simmons
Finance Secretary	Lois Simmons
Treasurer	Bob Ohlsen
Trustees Chair	Jeff Schulz
Lay Member to Annual Conference	Gloria Pike
Lay Leader	Geraldine Schmidt
Recording Secretary	Collette Oda
Membership and Evangelism Chair	Bob Schulz
Membership Secretary	Audrey Lee
Missions and Social Concerns	Laurie Wilts
Christian Ed.	Teresa Pomrenke Cindy Schmidt
Worship Chair	Viola Robbins
Church Historian	Wanda Tyler
Youth Reps.	Austin Schmidt Bryce Pomrenke
III THE PARTY OF T	

Committees:

Lay Leadership: Alvin Schultz, Merlin Haber, Collette Oda, Mary Norman, Gary Wilts, Lay Leader

Pastor/Parish Relations: Bob Oda, Brian Schmidt, lackie Schultz, Bruce Norman

Finance: Cheri Selleck, Wilma Ohlsen, Tom Wilmott, Alvin Schmidt, Jeff Schulz, Gerri Schmidt, Lois Simmons, Bob Ohlsen, Brian Schmidt

Audit: Jennie Vaselaar, Darlene Schulz, Marlys Haber

Trustees: Jeff Schulz, Harold Haber, Jackie Schultz, Charles Sellack, Gary Wilts, Chad Schulz

Membership and Evangelism: Harold Haber, Lois Simmons, Laura Wilts, Gerri Schmidt, Bob Schulz, Barb Schulz

Missions and Social Concerns: Laura Wilts, Eldon Clarke, Judy Smith, Mary Norman, Bob Oda, Alvin Schmidt, Bruce Norman

Education: Paula Stotz, Cheri Selleck, Wilma Ohlsen, Brian Schmidt

Worship: Viola Robbins, Collette Oda, Janet Basmajian, Peggy Knutson, Merlin Haber, Audrey Lee

History and Records: Genevieve Simmons, Viola Robbins, Wanda Tyler, Bob Schulz

Memorial: Christine Woodard, Hazel Bentaas, Margaret Haber, Myrtle McKinney

Rep. Campus Ministry: Marlys Haber

Organist: Darlene Schulz

Pianists: Janet Basmajian, Wilma Ohlsen

Pastor: Matt Richards

Marlys Haber

All Confirmed Members

And Active Constituents

Ministers: All the People